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October 8, 2024 

ADDENDUM NO. 03 

Your reference is directed to Solicitation Number Doc1240325943 for the Request for Proposal 
(RFP) for Health Services for OJJ, which is scheduled to open at 10:00 A.M. CT on October 22, 
2024. 

****************************************************************************** 

Proposal Opening Date Change – The Proposal Opening Date shall be changed to December 3, 
2024 at 10:00 A.M. CT. 

Event Section 1.1 Request for Proposal - RFP document has been replaced in its entirety. 
Words which are struck through are deletions. Words in bold, underscored, and highlighted are 
additions. 
 
Event Section 2.2.1 Part 2 Technical Proposal - Subpart A document has been replaced in its 
entirety. Words which are struck through are deletions. Words in bold, underscored, and 
highlighted are additions. 
 
Event Section 2.2.4 Part 2 Technical Proposal - Subpart C documents have been replaced in 
its entirety. Words which are struck through are deletions. Words in bold, underscored, and 
highlighted are additions. 
 
Event Section 2.3.1 Part 3 Financial Proposal – Price Schedule document has been replaced 
in its entirety.  
 
The Proposer’s written inquiries received by the inquiry deadline of September 16, 2024 and the 
State’s responses are included on pages 2 - 79. 
 
****************************************************************************** 

THIS ADDENDUM IS HEREBY OFFICIALLY MADE A PART OF THE REFERENCED 
PROPOSAL. 
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WRITTEN INQUIRIES 
RFP for Health Services for OJJ 

Solicitation Number Doc1240325943 
 

1. Question:  Will the Office of Juvenile Justice (OJJ) please arrange site tours of the six secure 
facilities?  It is difficult to submit an accurate proposal for sites that vendors have never seen.  
Without site tours, the incumbent vendor has a distinct and unfair advantage over other 
bidders. 
 
Response:   Site visits are being arranged for three facilities in the Monroe area.  Please see 
changes in this Addendum No.03 Additionally, floor plans are attached in this document for 
all six locations. See Attachment A. 
 

2. Question:  Will the OJJ please offer a pre-proposal conference, either virtual or in-person? 
 
Response: OJJ will not be offering a pre-proposal conference. 

 
3. Question:  With questions due on 9/16 and proposals due only three weeks later on 10/8, it 

will be vital for respondents to have answers to their submitted questions as early as possible.  
What is the OJJ’s targeted date for posting answers to vendors’ questions?   

 
Response:  As stated on page 3 of the RFP document in RFP Overview, “Responses to 
questions should be posted no later than 14 calendar days prior to proposal opening date. 
Dates and deadlines are subject to change. Proposers should continue checking the RFP 
Website for the most up-to-date information.” 
 

4. Question:  Please provide a copy of the staffing plan required by the current contract. 
 
Response:  The staffing plan provided by the Current Contractor can be requested via Public 
Record Request by emailing DOAPUBLICRECORDS@la.gov.  
 

5. Question:  Please provide a copy of the current contract. 
 
Response:   See Attachment B, Contract #2000803432, of this Addendum No. 03  

 
6. Question: What is the actual proposed start date for the contract (RFP states “September 1, 

2024)? 
 

Response:  The anticipated start date for the Contract is March 1, 2025. 
 

7. Question:  RFP Page 21 of 81: With regard to vendor personnel in the health care unit 
accessing the Internet:  
a. Do vendor staff access the Internet through (i) a State/OJJ network or (ii) the vendor’s 

network?   
b. Please describe how this currently happens, i.e., what type of hardware, wiring, and 

connectivity is in place.  
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c. Who (OJJ or vendor) is financially responsible for this hardware, wiring, and 
connectivity?  

d. Who (OJJ or vendor) will be financially responsible for any necessary upgrades or 
expansions for this hardware, wiring, and connectivity? 
 
Response:   
a. The vendor will have access to internet utilizing the State network. 
b. Ethernet and Wireless connectivity exist at the OJJ facilities. The system is a State secure 
system maintained by the Office of Technology Services (OTS). 
c. The vendor is financially responsible for providing all of the computer hardware; the OJJ 
is responsible for providing the internet wiring and services to be accessed. 
d. The vendor is financially responsible for all computer hardware upgrades; the OJJ is 
responsible for any upgrades to the internet system. 
 

8. Question:  RFP Page 21 of 81: With regard to health care staff accessing the State/OJJ 
network, please provide the following information.  
a. Currently, are the computers used by health care staff on (a) the State/OJJ network or (b) a 
private network supplied by the health care vendor?  
b. Will this scenario continue under the new contract?  
c. Will the OJJ permit the incoming health care vendor to utilize existing network 
infrastructure at the facilities, e.g., wiring, switches, etc.?  
d. Who is financially responsible for network upgrades, additions, or expansions necessary to 
support the OJJ youth health care program?  
 
Response:  
a. The computers used by the health care staff are on the State/OJJ network. 
b. Yes, this scenario will continue under the new Contract. 
c. Yes, the OJJ will permit the incoming health care Contractor to utilize existing network 
infrastructure at the facilities. 
d. The vendor is financially responsible for network upgrades, additions, or expansions 
necessary to support the OJJ youth health care program. 

 
9. Question:  RFP Page 21 of 81: With regard to time clocks or other timekeeping devices, 

please provide the following information. 
a. The number of timeclocks in place at each of the six secure facilities  
b. Where in the buildings they are located (for example, in the lobbies, at the security sally 
ports, in the medical units, etc.)  
c. Will the OJJ allow the incoming Contractor connect its timeclocks to the State/OJJ 
network? 

 
Response: 
 a. The specific number of time clocks in the facilities are unknown. The number of time 
clocks at each of the six facilities are the responsibility of the Contractor.  
b. The current Contractor keep their time clock in the infirmary department.  
c. Yes, the incoming contractor can connect to the State/OJJ network. 
 

Page 3 of 79



10. Question:  RFP Page 24 of 81: Does the OJJ currently utilize an electronic health record 
(EHR)?  If “yes,” please provide the following information:  
a. What is the name and version of the EHR that is in place?  
b. Is the existing EHR agreement/licensure/ownership in (a) the State’s/OJJ’s name or (b) the 
incumbent health care vendor’s name?  
c. Can the incoming vendor take over the existing EHR agreement/licensure?  
d. Where and by what company/agency is the EHR currently hosted?  
e. Who is financially responsible for the cost of hosting the EHR?  
f. Will this arrangement continue under the new contract?  
g. Does the OJJ have any concerns with the EHR being hosted in the cloud?   
h. Will the OJJ allow authorized providers and other staff not located onsite at the OJJ secure 
facilities to have remote access to the EHR?   
i. What interfaces are currently in place with the existing EHR, for example, the Offender 
Management System, the current pharmacy subcontractor, the current lab services contractor, 
etc.? 
 
Response:  
a. The name of the current EHR is Electronic Records Management Application (ERMA). 
The version is 6.157.2. 
b. The existing EHR system is the property of the incumbent healthcare Contractor.  
c. It is the responsibility of the incoming Contractor to provide the EHR system. 
d. The EHR was developed and is hosted by WellPath, LLC in Nashville, TN. 
e. The incoming Contractor is financially responsible for the cost of hosting the EHR. 
f. No, the new Contractor must have access to an EHR that they are responsible for 
maintaining. 
g. No, the OJJ does not have any concerns with the EHR being hosted in the cloud, as long as 
it is secure. 
h. Only the Contractor’s healthcare staff and the OJJ health team will have access to the EHR. 
i. The current EHR does interface with the offender management system called Juvenile 
Electronic Tracking System (JETS); the subcontractors are Diamond pharmacy and LabCorp. 
However, those subcontracts are the responsibility of the current Contractor and will remain 
the responsibility of the incoming Contractor. 
 

11. Question:  RFP Page 29 of 81: Please provide the following data regarding the size of the 
youth population.  
a. Three years’ worth of facility-specific historical data   
b. Five-year population projections 
 
Response:   
a. It’s a projected average of 320 youth per year, totaling 960 for three years across all 

facilities. 
Facility 2021 – Average 

population 
2022 – Average 

population 
2023 – Average 

population 
Bridge City Center 
for Youth 

80 80 36 
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Acadiana Center 
for Youth 

72 72 72 

Acadiana Center 
for Youth at St. 
Martinville 

24 24 24 

Swanson Center for 
Youth at Monroe 
old campus 

96 96 96 

Swanson Center for 
Youth at Columbia 

48 48 48 

Swanson Center for 
Youth at Monroe 
new campus 

--- --- ---  (opened in 2024 
with 72 youth beds) 

Total Average 320 320 320 
 

b. It’s projected that an average of 320 youth per year across all facilities and 1,600 youth 
for five years. 
 

12. Question:  RFP Page 29 of 81: Which (if any) dental services are currently provided onsite? 
If “yes,” is this done (a) with permanent State-owned dental equipment or (b) through a mobile 
dentistry practice (PLEASE IDENTIFY DENTAL PRACTICE)? 

 
Response:  General routine dentistry services are provided by the current Contractor, such as 
annual exams, x-rays; cleanings, fillings, and simple extractions. The current Contractor owns 
the dental equipment and dental x-ray equipment at one facility and the OJJ owns the 
equipment at the other facilities. The maintenance of the dental equipment at all facilities is 
the responsibility of the Contractor and this will remain the agreement in the new Contract. 
 

13. Question:  RFP Pages 29-30 of 81: For each of the past 36 months, please provide the 
following mental health data.  
a. Number of youths on suicide watch each month  
b. Number of suicide attempts  
c. Number of successful suicides  
d. Number of self-injurious behavior incidents 
 
Response:   
a. Each facility averaged about five suicide watches each month over the past 36 months. 
b. There were zero suicide attempts made at any facility over the past 36 months.  
c. There were zero successful suicides over the past 36 months.  
d. There were 185 self-injurious behavior incidents over the past 36 months.  
 

14. Question:  RFP Page 30 of 81: What laboratory subcontractor does your current health care 
vendor use for lab services, e.g., LabCorp, Garcia, Bio-Reference, etc.? 
 
Response:  LabCorp is the laboratory subcontractor that the current health care Contractor 
uses for lab services. 
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15. Question:  RFP Page 30 of 81: Are any x-ray services currently provided onsite? If “yes,” is 

this done (a) with permanent State-owned x-ray equipment or (b) through a mobile radiology 
vendor (PLEASE IDENTIFY VENDOR)? 

 
Response: Dental x-ray services are provided onsite with state-owned dental x-ray 
equipment, with the exception at one site where the Contractor owned dental x-ray equipment 
is utilized.  Other x-ray services are done either off campus at the nearest Emergency Room 
(ER) or on-campus through a mobile radiology vendor subcontracted by the current 
Contractor. 
 
Vendors vary depending on the location of the facility. The mobile x-ray company that has 
been utilized at Bridge City Center for Youth (BCCY), Swanson Center for Youth at 
Columbia (SCYC), Swanson Center for Youth at Monroe new campus (SCY M) Jackson, and 
Swanson Center for Youth at Monroe old campus (SCY M) Grand St facilities is X-Press 
Ray, Inc. Acadiana Center for Youth (ACY) and Acadiana Center for Youth at St. Martinville 
(ACY SM) do not have access to the utilization of a mobile x-ray company. 
 

16. Question:  RFP Pages 30-31 of 81: For each of the six secure facilities, which hospital(s) is 
used most frequently? 
 
Response:  Bridge City Center for Youth (BCCY) most frequently uses Children’s Hospital. 
Acadiana Center for Youth (ACY) most frequently uses Bunkie General or Rapides General 
Hospital. Acadiana Center for Youth at St. Martinville (ACY- SM) most frequently uses 
Lafayette General Hospital. Swanson Center for Youth at Columbia (SCY C), Swanson 
Center for Youth at Monroe new campus (SCY Jackson), and Swanson Center for Youth at 
Monroe old campus (SCY Grand St) most frequently uses Ochsner Hospital in Monroe and/or 
Ochsner Hospital in Shreveport. 
 

17. Question:  RFP Page 31 of 81: Please identify the number, type, and timeframes of any 
backlogs (chronic care clinics, offsite referrals, dental encounters, etc.) that currently exist at 
the OJJ facilities. 
 
Response:  There are currently no backlogs for medical services at any facility. 

 
18. Question:  RFP Page 33 of 81: The RFP states, “The Contractor shall be required to pay the 

sum of $200.00 per youth per trip over 30 miles on the officer's mileage log for every trip 
made.”  In the past 12 months, how many “trip(s) over 30 miles” were made? 

 
Response:  In the past 12 months, there were no trips made over 30 miles.  
 

19. Question:  RFP Pages 36-37 of 81: What pharmacy subcontractor does your current health 
care vendor use for pharmacy services, e.g., Diamond, Correct Rx, Boswell, etc.? 
 
Response:  Diamond is the pharmacy subcontractor that the current health care Contractor 
uses for pharmacy services. 
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20. Question:  RFP Pages 36-37 of 81: On average, at the six secure facilities, how many patients 

per month receive these types of prescription drugs?  
a. Psychotropic medications  
b. Hepatitis C medications  
c. HIV/AIDS medications  
d. Medications to treat bleeding disorders (e.g., hemophilia, Von Willebrand disease, etc. 
 
Response:   
a. On average, about 185 patients receive psychotropic medications per month.  
b. Zero patients receive Hepatitis C medications. 
c. Zero patients receive HIV/AIDS medications. 
d. Zero patients receive medications to treat bleeding disorders. 
 

21. Question:  RFP Pages 40-41 of 81: For each of the six OJJ secure facilities, please provide a 
listing of any current health service vacancies, by position. 
 
Response:  There are currently no contracted health provider vacancies at any of the facilities. 
 

22. Question:  RFP Pages 40-41 of 81: Please confirm that labor hours in the following categories 
will count toward any “hours provided” requirements of the contract.   
a. Time spent by health care staff in orientation, in-service training, and continuing education 
classes   
b. Overtime hours   
c. Agency hours   
d. Approved paid-time-off 
 
Response: The healthcare staff labor hours are the responsibility of the Contractor. The 
Contract requires the facilities to be managed by experienced and trained staff. The Contract 
requires the facility to be managed 365 days per year, 24 hours a day. The Contractor is 
responsible for making sure these requirements are met, but not at the expense of Contract. 
a. The Contractor is responsible for compensating the health staff for any time spent in staff 
orientation, in-service training and continuing education. The Contract requires the health 
staff to be present treating youth for the hours contracted for in the matrix. 
b. The Contract does not pay over-time hours. The Contractor is responsible for managing the 
contracted hours with enough staff to prevent over-time hours.    
c. Agency staff is not permitted in the Contract.  
d. The Contractor is responsible for compensating the health staff for approved paid-time off.  
The Contract requires the health staff to be present, treating youth for the hours contracted for 
in the matrix. 

 
23. Question:  RFP Page 42 of 81: Please provide (by year) the amounts of any staffing 

paybacks/credits the OJJ has assessed against the incumbent vendor over the term of the 
current contract. 
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Response:  The OJJ has not received credits back or penalized the current vendor for any 
staffing issues. Staffing patterns must be maintained due to the operational needs of the 
facility. The current Contractor utilizes part-time and work as needed staff to maintain full 
coverage of all shifts, positions and services. 
 

24. Question:  RFP Page 42 of 81: Please provide (by year) the amounts and reasons for any non-
staffing penalties/ liquidated damages the OJJ has assessed against the incumbent vendor over 
the term of the current contract. 
 
Response:  There have been no non-staffing penalties or liquidated damages assessed against 
the current Contractor over the past 3 years. 
 

25. Question:  RFP Page 42 of 81: The RFP references, “failure to attain and maintain ACA 
accreditation.”  Please confirm that all six of the secure facilities are currently accredited by 
the American Correctional Association (ACA) and provide the following information.  
a. Most recent accreditation date for the facility  
b. Copy of most recent accreditation audit report for the facility  
c. Who is financially responsible for the cost of the accreditation fees? 
 
Response:  
a. Currently, none of the facilities are ACA accredited, but all facilities still operate by the 
ACA standards and PbS standards. However, if at any time the OJJ decides to become ACA 
accredited again, this reference would apply to the Contractor. See Changes in this Addendum 
No. 03 
b. There are currently no accreditation audit reports for any of the six facilities. 
c. The OJJ is financially responsible for the cost of the accreditation fees, when applicable. 

 
26. Question: Price Schedule: For each of the past 36 months, please provide statistical data for 

each of the following categories.  
a. Number of (offsite) inpatient hospital admissions    
b. Number of (offsite) inpatient hospital days   
c. Number of outpatient surgeries  
d. Number of outpatient referrals  
e. Number of trips to the emergency department (ED)  
f. Number of ED referrals resulting in hospitalization  
g. Number of ground ambulance transports  
h. Number of air ambulance transports  
i. Number of dialysis treatments 

 
Response:   
a. There were four offsite inpatient hospital admissions over the past 36 months. 
b. There were 12 offsite inpatient hospital days over the past 36 months.  
c. There were 105 outpatient surgeries for incidents such as, broken bones repairs and dental 
surgeries over the past 36 months. 
d. There were 368 outpatient referrals over the past 36 months.  
e. There were 600 trips to the ED over the past 36 months.  
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f. There were two ED referrals that resulted in a hospitalization over the past 36 months.  
g. There were 20 ground ambulance transports over the past 36 months.  
h. There were zero air ambulance transports over the past 36 months. 
i. There were zero dialysis treatments over the past 36 months. 
 

27. Question:  Price Schedule: For each of the past 3 years, please provide total spend amounts 
for the following categories.  
a. Inpatient hospitalization  
b. Other offsite services  
c. Pharmaceutical expenditures  
d. Laboratory services  
e. Offsite diagnostic (x-ray) services 
 
Response:   
a. There were no spend amounts for inpatient hospitalization. Youth who are hospitalized for 
24 hours or more can be covered under Medicaid for payment. 
b. There were no spend amounts for offsite services. Youth who are referred off site for 
services that are not able to be provided under the contract are covered under the Offender 
Management Program managed by the Department of Corrections. 
c. The Pharmacy amounts of the Contract for each year was $259,633.00. 
d. The total spend amount for Laboratory services is unknown. Laboratory services are a part 
of a subcontract that is managed by the current Contractor and paid for under Medical Services 
of the Contract. 
e. The total spend amount for offsite diagnostic services is unknown. Offsite diagnostic (x-
ray) services are a part on a subcontract that is managed by the current Contractor and paid 
for under Medical Services of the Contract. 
 

28. Question:  Price Schedule: Please clearly identify which entity—the OJJ or the awarded 
vendor—will be financially responsible for costs in each of the following categories.  
a. Inpatient hospitalization  
b. Outpatient surgeries  
c. Other outpatient referrals  
d. ER visits  
e. Offsite dialysis  
f. Offsite diagnostics (lab/x-ray)  
g. Pharmaceuticals 
 
Response:   
a. OJJ is financially responsible for the costs of inpatient hospitalization.  
b. OJJ is financially responsible for the costs of outpatient surgeries. 
c. OJJ is financially responsible for the costs of other outpatient referrals. 
d. OJJ is financially responsible for the costs of ER visits. 
e. OJJ is financially responsible for the costs of offsite dialysis. 
f. OJJ is financially responsible for the costs of offsite diagnostics like x-rays if it is with an 
ER visit. If an ER visit is not necessary then the Contractor is financially responsible for x-
rays. The Contractor is also financially responsible for offsite diagnostics like labs. 
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g. The Contractor is financially responsible for pharmaceutical costs. 
 
29. Question:  Price Schedule: Please confirm that the vendor will NOT be financially 

responsible for any of the following services under the new contract.  If there is any category 
for which the awarded vendor WILL be financially responsible, please provide three years of 
cost data on the expenses incurred in that category.  
a. Care for newborn babies after the actual delivery  
b. Abortions that are not clinically necessary  
c. Cosmetic surgery that is not clinically necessary  
d. Gender reassignment (sex change) surgery and any follow-up treatment or related cosmetic 
procedures  
e. Contraception, including vasectomy, tubal ligation, or reversal of such  
f. Experimental care  
g. Elective care, i.e., care which if not provided would not (in the opinion of the Medical 
Director) cause the patient’s health to deteriorate or cause the patient definite and/or 
irreparable physical harm   
h. Autopsies  
i. Organ, tissue, or other transplant surgery and related costs, including, but not limited to labs, 
testing, pharmaceuticals, pre- or post-op follow-up care, or ongoing care relating to the 
transplant  
j. Factor and other medications for the treatment of bleeding disorders 

 
Response:  
a. The Contractor will not be financially responsible for care of newborn babies after the actual 
delivery. Medicaid will be financially responsible for the medical care of the child delivered 
by the youth during incarceration. Newborns are not allowed to stay with mothers in the 
facilities, while incarcerated. 
b. The Contractor will not be financially responsible for abortions that are not clinically 
necessary.  
c. The Contractor will not be financially responsible for cosmetic surgery that is not clinically 
necessary. 
d. The Contractor will not be financially responsible for gender reassignment (sex change) 
surgery and any follow up treatment or related cosmetic procedures. 
e. The Contractor is financially responsible for oral contraception. The OJJ does not have 
financial data on the cost of oral contraceptives because the OJJ has not historically provided 
care for juvenile females.  Females became a part of the OJJ population in September of 2024. 
Juveniles are not permitted to have a vasectomy, tubal ligation, or reversal of such. 
f. Experimental care is not permitted in juvenile facilities. 
g. The Contractor will not be financially responsible for Elective care. 
h. The Contractor will not be financially responsible for autopsies.  
i. The Contractor will be financially responsible for all labs, pharmaceutical, testing and 
pre/post op care. The OJJ does not have financial data for transplant care related services 
because OJJ have not had a youth with this type of medical needs in the past three years.  
j. The Contractor will be financially responsible for Factor and other medications for the 
treatment of bleeding disorders. The OJJ does not have financial data for this medication 
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treatment because OJJ have not had youth with this type of medical need in the past three 
years. 
  

30. Question:  Price Schedule: In many states, health care for detained/incarcerated youths is 
covered by the state’s Medicaid program.  Is this true for youths housed at the six OJJ secure 
facilities?  If “yes,” please provide the following information on this topic.  
a. Please list the categories of care (e.g., inpatient, outpatient, medications, etc.) that are 
covered by Medicaid  
b. Who is responsible for enrolling detained/incarcerated youths into Medicaid?  
c. Please provide the current processes and timeframes for (a) enrollment in the program and 
(b) payment at the program’s discounted rates. 
 
Response:   
a. Medicaid is suspended when a juvenile becomes incarcerated in the OJJ facilities. However, 
if the juvenile is hospitalized for greater than 24 hours, Medicaid can be reactivated for the 
hospital stay only. 
b. Prior to release from custody, the OJJ Social Service Staff is responsible for enrolling 
previously detained/incarcerated youths into Medicaid.  
c. Thirty days prior to the release, youth are enrolled in to the Medicaid program. The payment 
process for Medicaid rates are as follows: the bill is sent to the Third Party Payor, who then 
reprices the bill based on the Medicaid rate. 
 

31. Question:  Price Schedule: On Sheet 3, Comprehensive Breakdown, the columns are totaled 
in two places: Row 19 is the grand total of the rows above it; and then Row 20 sums ALL of 
the rows in the table including Row 19, thereby effectively doubling the price presented by 
vendors.  Will the OJJ please correct this and issue a new Pricing Form? 
 
Response:  Yes. Please see changes in this Addendum No. 03 

 
32. Question:  General: Will the OJJ please consider a four- to six-week extension of the 

solicitation’s due date, in order to give non-incumbent vendors time to analyze and 
incorporate the responses to questions? 

 
Response:  The due date is being extended. Please see changes in this Addendum No. 03. 
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